
 CITY OF DANA POINT 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

AGENDA REPORT 
 

 
DATE: AUGUST 10, 2020  
 
TO: DANA POINT PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 BRENDA WISNESKI, DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  
 JOHN CIAMPA, SENIOR PLANNER 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY REVIEW FOR A SITE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AND 

TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP TO ALLOW THE CONSTRUCTION OF A 
THREE UNIT RESIDENTIAL CONDOMINIUM AND RETAINING WALLS 
AT 25022 SELVA ROAD 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  That the Planning Commission provides feedback to the 

applicant focusing on potential issues that may be raised during 
consideration of a formal submittal for the project. 

 
APPLICANT:  Robert Williams, Studio 6 Architects 
 
PROPERTY OWNERS: Coastline Development, Inc. 
 
REQUEST:  Preliminary review for a Tentative Parcel Map and a Site 

Development Permit for the construction of a three-unit 
residential condominium and site retaining walls. 

 
LOCATION:  25022 Selva Road (APN: 682-123-38) 
  
NOTICE:  No notice is required. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL:  Not applicable at this time. 
 
ISSUES: 
 

 Project consistency with the Dana Point General Plan and the Dana Point Zoning 
Code (DPZC). 
 

 Project land use compatibility and community values. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The applicant submitted a preliminary review for the development of a three-unit residential 
project on an 8,287 square foot vacant lot in the Residential Multiple Family 14 (RMF-14) 
Zoning District. The project site and surrounding multi-family structures on a hillside, which 
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required many of the developments to be designed with three stories and/or stem walls to 
mitigate the topographical conditions of the area. The subject property has a 17 percent 
slope that starts at the street and drops to the back of the lot. The surrounding developments 
were constructed primarily in the 1970s while under the County of Orange jurisdiction, and 
many of the structures do not comply with the height regulations of the Dana Point Zoning 
Code (DPZC).  
 
The proposed project would require a Tentative Parcel Map (TPM) to allow for the 
individual sale of the units, pursuant to Section 7.05.060 of the City’s Subdivision 
Ordinance. Additionally, a Minor Site Development Permit (SDP(M)) would be required 
for retaining walls taller than 30 inches in height pursuant to Section 9.05.120 of the 
DPZC.   
 
Preliminary Review: 
 
A preliminary review by the Planning Commission is a more formal option, made available 
to the applicant, to provide feedback on a potential project, pursuant to Section 
9.61.100(a)(2). The process includes the Planning Commission’s brief evaluation of the 
project under the “New Business” section of the meeting. The applicant will have the 
opportunity to present the proposal directly to the Planning Commission and discuss the 
issues associated with the project. The objective of the review is to identify issues and 
possible solutions pertinent to the proposed project; however, the Planning Commission is 
legally limited in the type and amount of input they can provide during the preliminary review. 
Commissioner comments and feedback should be focused on the identification of potential 
issues that may be raised during consideration of a formal submittal.  
 
Staff and the applicant have worked collaboratively on various design iterations for the 
subject site. However, due to the topographic constraints of the lot and the project’s potential 
deviations from the DPZC, the applicant has requested a preliminary review by the Planning 
Commission to provide guidance on the project design. The applicant is requesting the 
Planning Commission provide feedback on the project’s design and if a height Variance 
could be justified given the constraints of the lot or if additional design modifications like 
retaining walls should be incorporated into the project to make it comply with the height 
regulations. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
The applicant proposes to develop two residential structures on the vacant lot for the 
creation of three residential units. The structure located to Selva Road would contain unit 
A with an attached garage, and the second structure at the rear of the lot would contain 
units B and C with two attached garages. The applicant’s two structure design is intended 
to break up the massing to create a project that is more compatible with the neighborhood.  
 
Pursuant to Section 9.09.030(e) (Minimum Land Area per Unit) of the DPZC, the proposed 
8,287 square foot lot is large enough to support up to three residential units. Additionally, 
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the proposed development complies with the required Residential Multiple Family (RMF-
14) Development Standards identified in Section 9.09.030 of the Dana Point Zoning Code 
(DPZC) with the exception of the height regulations and proposed retaining walls that 
would require a SDP(M).  
 
Project Issues 
 
The topography of the site creates challenging conditions for the project to comply with 
the height regulations and maximum driveway grade requirements in the DPZC. The lot 
has a 17 percent slope, which does not qualify for relief from the Hillside Condition 
Ordinance (20 percent slope required) to allow an increase in the maximum height for the 
structures. The construction of the project, without deviations from the development 
standards, could result in an unfavorable design or a decrease in the number of residential 
units developed on the property.  
 
Per Section 9.35.050(b)(3)(A)(1) of the DPZC “The driveway shall have a maximum grade 
of ten (10) percent, measured along the driveway centerline, for a distance of not less 
than ten (10) feet.” Additionally, since the driveway would be longer than 50 feet, Section 
9.35.050(b)(A)(3) would also apply which states “If any entry drive exceeds fifty (50) feet 
in length, the first eighteen (18) feet of the access may not exceed an eight (8) percent 
grade.”  The maximum grade for the driveway results in a need to add fill to comply with 
the access requirements, which would then have implications on the height of the 
structures. Due to the topography of the site, the project would incorporate stem walls 
and retaining walls to mitigate the slope of the lot. Retaining walls would be located along 
the north property line to provide the minimum driveway grade. At the rear of the lot, 
retaining walls would be added to create a functional outdoor living area for units B and 
C.  
 
Per Section 9.05.110(a)(2) of the DPZC, each structure must be measured from the top 
of the roof to either the lowest existing grade or the lowest finished pad elevation, 
whichever is the lower. However, subdivision projects (as proposed) shall be measured 
in accordance with Section 9.05.110(a)(5), which states, “Building height and height of 
fences and walls for new residential subdivisions shall be measured from finished grade, 
subject to approval by the Planning Commission.” The Dana Point Zoning Ordinance 
provides the definition and figure for “Grade” and “Existing Grade” below: 
 
Grade — the average of the finished ground level (finished grade) at the center of all 

exterior walls of a building or, where such walls are parallel to and within five (5) feet of a 
sidewalk, the average of the finished ground level at the sidewalk, or to the top of curb, 

where there is no sidewalk. 

Grade, Existing — the elevation of the ground which exists prior to the start of any site 

preparation, grading, or construction related to the project being proposed. Existing grade 
will not be the same as natural grade if the site has been previously graded. 
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Figure 1: DPZC Illustration for Grade  

 

Based on the proposed design, the lowest finished grade would be where the natural 
grade meets the stem wall (see Figure 2 below).  
 
 

Figure 2: Project Low Point From Finished Grade 
 

 
 
To address the challenging topographical issues, the applicant has identified a potential 
project alternative to incorporate additional retaining walls around the stem walls to 
elevate the finished grade around the structures. Raising the finished grade around the 
stem walls would allow the structure to comply with the required 24-foot height 
requirement. However, the addition of retaining walls would push the project’s structural 
elements closer to the side property lines and would require the approval of a Minor Site 
Development Permit because the walls would range from 5.5 to 7.5 feet above grade. As 
part of the Minor Site Development Permit analysis, staff would review the retaining walls 
to ensure they are the minimum heights necessary to comply with the topography 
constraints of the site and ensure they are compatible with the neighborhood.  
 
A second alternative to address the constraints of the site would be for the applicant to 
apply for a height Variance, which would eliminate the need to raise the finished grade of 
the site with additional retaining walls adjacent to the side property lines.  
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Supporting Document 1: Vicinity Map 

 



Planning Commission Agenda Report   
August 10, 2020 
Page 7 
 

 

Supporting Document 2: Site and Adjacent Property Photos  
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Supporting Document 3: Project Plans 
 

ATTACHMENT 
 
























